


CAL EXPO | STATE-FAIR

Notice of Meeting

California Exposition & State Fair
Meeting of the Board of Directors
To Be Held
Friday, December 10, 2021 at 9:30 a.m.
The Board will meet in closed session from 9:30 a.m. to 10:15 am.
Public Board Meeting will resume at 10:30 p.m.
In the Administration Building Boardroom
California State Fairgrounds
1600 Exposition Boulevard

Sacramento, California 95815

Jess Durfee, Chair
Rex Hime, Vice Chair

Rima Barkett, Director Rina DiMare, Director
Erin Choi, Director David Mallel, Director
Sonney Chong, Director Brian May, Director

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS
Governor Gavin Newsom

Senator Dr. Richard Pan Assembly Member Kevin McCarty
Senator Andreas Borgeas Assembly Member Robert Rivas

218 days to California State Fair (July 15-31, 2022)
This notice is also available on the Internet at: www.CalExpoStateFair
Mission Statement
The California Exposition & State Fair mission is to create a State Fair experience reflecting

California including its industries, agriculture, and diversity of its people, traditions and trends
shaping its future supported by year-round events.

Policy Statement

The Board shall serve as the policy-making body for the California Exposition & State Fair and
shall have full responsibility for the year-round management and operation of all facilities of the
California Exposition & State Fair.



Public Comment

Any member of the public wishing to address the Board on any matter listed for consideration
on this agenda shall fill out a Speaker’s Form and provide it to the Board’s Recording Secretary.
All speakers will be recognized by the Chair and be allowed a maximum of three minutes to
address the Board at the time the agenda item is being considered by the Board. If you wish to
address the Board on a matter not listed on the agenda, you have that right. If you wish to
exercise that right, please fill out a speaker’s form and provide it to the Board’s Recording
Secretary. You will be allowed a maximum of three minutes to address the Board during the
Public Comment item on the agenda.

AGENDA
1. CALLTO ORDER

All matters noticed on this agenda, in any category, may be considered for action as
listed. Any items not so noticed may not be considered. Items listed on this agenda may
be considered in any order, at the discretion of the Chair.

2. ROLL CALL
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. CLOSED SESSION
The Board will convene in closed session as authorized by Government Code Section
11126(e), (2), and (B), to confer with and receive advice from legal counsel regarding
potential litigation involving the California Exposition and State Fair. Based on existing
facts and circumstances, there is significant exposure to litigation against California
Exposition and State Fair.

5. PUBLIC BOARD MEETING
a. Report out of Closed Session if needed.

6. INTRODUCTION OF GUEST & STAFF

7. MINUTES OF MEETINGS
a. Accept Cultural Advisory Council Meeting Minutes of October 21, 2021, as
presented.
b. Approve Board Retreat Meeting Minutes of October 28-29, 2021.
C. Approve Board Meeting Minutes of October 29, 2021.



8. COMMITTEE AND STAFF REPORTS
a. Finance
1. Review and Approval of 39 Quarter 2021 Financials
2. Draft 2022 Revenue and Expense Budget-Proposed
3. Review and Approval of Proposed 2022 Annual Budget
4. Relief of Accountability

9. NEW BUSSINESS

a. Review and Approval of Proposed 2022 Annual Budget

b. Discussion and possible action regarding Master Food & Beverage and
Restaurant/Catering Concession Agreement No. 12-02891, Terms and Conditions,
Section 12, Term January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2022

c. Discussion and possible action regarding Multi-Use Sports Field Agreement No. 13-
0347, Terms and Conditions, Section 2, Term March 13, 2014 through December
21, 2027,

d. Review for Approval Proposed 2022 Cal Expo Board Meeting Dates

10. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

a. Nominations Received at Last Public Meeting on October 29, 2021
1. Chair — Jess Durfee
2. Vice Chair — Rex Hime
3. Nominations from the Floor
4. Close Nominations
5. Hold Election of 2022 Officers of the Board

b. Office of Secretary-Treasurer/General Manager — Rick Pickering

11. MATTERS OF INFORMATION
a. Public Comments on Matters not on the Agenda
b. CEO Comments
¢. Directors Comments/Agenda Items for Future Meetings
d. Next Board Meeting — Friday, January 28, 2022
e. Other, if any

ADJOURNMENT
Date of Notice: November 30, 2021

Pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals who, because of a disability, need
special assistance to attend or participate in any Cal Expo Board, Committee or any Advisory
meetings, or in connection with other Cal Expo Activities, may request assistance at the Cal
Expo Administration Building Offices, 1600 Exposition Boulevard, or by calling 916-263-3247,
during normal business hours. Requests should be made one week in advance whenever
possible.






CAL-EXPO | STATE FAIR

Meeting Minutes of the
California Exposition & State Fair
Cultural Advisory Council
Held
Thursday October 21, 2021, at 5:30 p.m.
Via teleconference originating at
California State Fairgrounds
1600 Exposition Blvd.
Sacramento, California 95815

Council Members Present
Jag Nagendra, Chair
David Banuelos, Vice Chair

Dorian A, Member Edward Lewis, Member
Delgreta Brown, Member Cha Vang, Member
Denise Carter, Member Danny Vang, Member

Susan Knutson, Alternate Member

Council Members Absent

Twiana Armstrong, Member Anita R. Johnson, Member
Debora Richardson-Brister, Member Chris Mateo, Member
Stephanie Foster, Member Cat Nou, Member

Rung Fang Hsu, Member Jerry Yamashita, Member

Board and Staff Present

Erin Choi, Board Member Liaison

Rick Pickering, CEO-General Manager

Tom Martinez, Chief Deputy General Manager
Sue O’Brien, Recording Secretary

This notice is also available on the Internet at: www.CalExpoStateFair.com

MM-1



1)

2)

3)
4)

5)

MINUTES
CALL TO ORDER - The meeting was call to order at 5:36 p.m. by Chair Nagendra

ROLL CALL - Role was taken and a quorum was present. Council Members
Armstrong, Richard-Brister, Foster, Hsu, Johnson, Mateo, Nou and Yamashita were not
present. Council Members Johnson, Nou and Yamashita asked to be excused.

MOTION:

Chair Nagendra asked for a motion to excuse Council Members Johnson, Nou and
Yamashita. Motion was moved by Council Member Lewis and seconded by Vice Chair
Banuelos. All in favor, motion carries unanimously.

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS & STAFF

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
a) Approval of Council Meeting Minutes from July 15, 2021

MOTION:

Chair Nagendra asked for a motion to approve the meeting minutes from July 15, 2021.
Council Member Lewis moved the motion and Council Member Cha Vang seconded the
motion. All in favor, motion carries unanimously.

STAFF & MEMBER UPDATES
a) Cal Expo Updates & 2022 State Fair

CEO Pickering announced that the Board of Directors set July 15 through July
31, 2022 as the fair dates for the 2022 State Fair. He went on to report that there
will be many of the same elements that were used in the 2019 State Fair along
with new elements that we are working on. The Board of Directors will be having
their board retreat at the end of October where they will discuss the fair, special
event dates as well as updating some of our documents that we use during fair.
Like most employers we are having a challenge hiring staff. As you remember
with the pandemic Cal Expo laid off 600-700 part time and temp staff along with
60% of our full time staff. This dropped us down to about 23 full time staff. Cal
Expo is in the process of adding staff back on. Cal Expo has a new Director of
Human Relations Teresa Tillman who comes to us from Cal Trans. Mr. Pickering
went on to say that the Board is having their planning retreat later this month and
after that there will be more to reveal about the 2022 State Fair. Council Member
Lewis asked if there will be any outreach to the Colleges for summer workers?
Pickering went on to explain that there would be and talked about how Council
Member Danny Vang had helped in the past with suppling students to help out.
Council Member Cha Vang asked that when remembering the front line workers
during the pandemic to remember the Farm Workers. She also asked about
information regarding other fairs having their fair or having events and the
process of dealing with COVID and COVID restrictions. CEO Pickering stated
that all events were cancelled at Cal Expo when the State shut down. Cal Expo

MM-2



was asked by the Administration and Kaiser to remain doing vaccines during the
summer of 2021 which is why there wasn’t a State Fair in 2021. When the State
re-opened in June many of our promoters wanted to do their events. County in
the Park put a cap on their attendance and they sold out at 18,000 people.
Foodie Land Nation was a 4 day event that was great. Foodie Land planned on
30,000 over 4 days and had over 78,000 people in 4 days. Had a 10 day carnival
only with Butler Amusements and that was wildly successful. However coming
into the winter we have had some larger events cancel due to new regulations
that have come out. Any indoor event of 1000 or more must show proof of
vaccination or a negative test within 72 hours. Some promoters and their
insurance companies have stepped back while others think they can make it
work.

Chair Nagendra stated at the last meeting there was a discussion about any
maintence of the facility being done during COVID. Chief Deputy General
Manger Martinez went on to say that there have been a number of projects. Cal
Expo has replaced 1.8 miles of underground gas lines, replaced a new well,
painted the water tower with paint that preserves the water tower, replace roof on
buildings A & B and are almost done with roofing Expo Center (8 buildings) along
with fixing/replacing doors in the buildings and new gutters were put on the
pavilion. Cal Expo is also looking into modernizing the Main Gate before the next
fair. Council Member Brown asked about changes to ensure safety and social
distancing. CEQ Pickering stated that he and others have gone to other fairs and
study what they have done and have taken lots of pictures. Most fair are trying to
encourage social distancing and mask wearing and more hand washing.
However at most fairs it was noted that there were less commercial vendors and
food vendors due to the fact that many have gone out of business during the
pandemic. This will be a subject for the board that their Board Retreat next week.
Vice Chair Banuelos asked with the need to hire has it been considered doing a
public hiring or job fair event? Chief Deputy General Manager Martinez stated
that that issued had been discuss last week and further discussions were going
to happen. Council Member Brown asked if cashless transactions were going to
be mandated at the fair? CEO Pickering stated that Cal Expo has been watching
how other events have implement cashless transaction. We would also need
input from our vendors.

6) NEW BUSINESS

a) Review Process of Annual Election of Chair and Vice Chair
Ms. OBrien reviewed the election process that takes place at the next board
meeting. Will need to look into doing a ballet voting process.

b) Review of Process to assist in recruiting Cultural Advisory Council Members
Ms. OBrien informed the Council that there are at least 4 seat that will be vacant.
She went on to explain how the recruitment happened and the media press
release.

7) MATTERS OF INFORMATION
a) Public Comments Matters not on the Agenda

MM-3



b) Members Comments Matters not on the Agenda
Council Member Brown wanted it noted in the record that when honoring the
frontline workers please remember the creative arts community along with the
textile workers.
Council Member Knutson asked about becoming involved with the Friends of the
Fair. CEO Pickering explained the relationship Cal Expo has with them and how
Council Member D. Vang is helping with the scholarship program. It was decided
that there should be more involvement with Friends of the Fair.

c) Next Cultural Advisory Council Meeting November 18, 2021.

8) ADJOURNMENT
The Cultural Advisory Council Meeting was adjourned at 6:22 p.m.

MM-4



CALIFORNIA EXPOSITION
& STATE FAIR

Minutes of the Board of Directors Regular Meeting

Held Pursuant to Due Notice
October 29, 2021

California Exposition & State Fair
1600 Exposition Blvd.
Sacramento, CA 95815

The meeting was also conducted by teleconference originating at
California Exposition & State Fair
1600 Exposition Boulevard
Sacramento, CA 95815

MM-5



Directors Present

Director Jess Durfee, Chair
Director Rex Hime, Vice Chair
Director Erin Choi

Director Sonney Chong
Director Rina DiMare

Director David Mallel

Director Brian May

Directors Absent
Director Rima Barkett

Executive Staff Present

Rick Pickering, Chief Executive Officer

Tom Martinez, Chief Deputy General Manager
Marcia Shell, Assistant General Manger Expo Events
Craig Walton, Chief of Police

Sue O’'Brien, Recording Secretary

Others Present as identified by Zoom and in the room
Beatriz Aurelio, Guest

Michael Beren, Cal Expo Staff

Brian Honebein, Event Partnerships

Jen Koga, Cal Expo Staff

Charlie Neary, Spectra

Jay Satenspiel, Spectra

Teresa Tillman, Cal Expo Staff

Mike Ward, Cal Expo Staff

Jackie Zdanowski, Cal Expo Staff

MM-6



. CALL TO ORDER - Public Meeting
Chair Durfee called the public meeting to order at 12:39 p.m. Chair Durfee
dispensed with the reading of the Mission Statement, Policy Statement and
reviewed Public Comment Statement.

. ROLL CALL

Roll call was taken and a quorum was present. Director Barkett and Director
Mallel will be using zoom to attend the meeting.

. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chair Durfee asked Chief Walton to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS AND STAFF

CEO Pickering introduced Teresa Tillman, who is the new head of our Department
of Personnel. She has extensive experience with other state agencies and was
most recently with the Department of Transportation.

CEO Pickering announced that after the retirement of our former Acting Chief of
Police and the recruitment process Cal Expo’s new Chief of Police is Craig Walton.
CEO Pickering administered the Oath of Office for the new Chief as his family
proceeded with the pinning ceremony.

. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

In accordance with state law, the Board will not comment or otherwise consider
Public Comment matters until and unless such item has been properly noticed for
future meeting.

. CONSENT AGENDA

All' items on the consent agenda are to be approved in one motion unless a Board
Member request a separate action on a specific item.
a. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes for September 24, 2021
b. Service Contracts/Purchase Orders Requiring Notification/Approval
MOTION:
Chair Durfee asked for a motion to approve items a - b of the consent agenda.
It was moved by Vice Chair Hime and seconded by Director Chong. It was
noted that there was no item b. Discussion — None. All in favor, motion
carried, unanimously.

. FINANCIAL REPORTS

a. Profit & Loss Statement
CEO Pickering stated that the Board had reviewed earlier in their workshop the
Profit & Loss Statement. Staff is recommending that the pro rata assessment

MM-7



for Cal Expo for years 2020-2021 be immediately paid by Cal Expo at such time
Cal Expo receives the States allocation.
MOTION:
That the Board directs staff to pay the pro-rata with the notation that first Cal
Expo gets the funds transferred to them. CEO Pickering had a clarification that
it's 2021 pro-rata. Motion was moved by Vice Chair Hime and seconded by
Director Chong. Discussion: None. Chair Durfee asked for a roll call vote; Chair
Durfee, yes; Vice Chair Hime, yes; Director Choi, yes; Director Chong, yes;
Director DiMare, yes; Director Mallel, yes; Director May, yes. Motion carried,
unanimously.

b. Balance Sheet

Ms. Koga reported that she did not have any new updates at this time.

c. Aged Receivable Report

8. CORRESPONDENCE
None

9. NEW BUSINESS
a. Update and possible action on Fantasy Sports Wagering via California

Authority of Racing Fairs (CARF)
California Association of Racing Fairs (CARF) is a joint power authority that
Cal Expo along with other fairs in the state of California are members. CARF
has been working towards expanding gaming at fair race tracks and fair
simulcast wagering facilities. The most recent item that CARF has been
involved with is Calypso Challenge Sports Wagering. Two other large sports
wagering companies in the State of California are Fan Duels and Draft King.
CARF’s Board of Directors voted to move forward with the Calypso
Challenge Sports Program. It will be up to each fair to decide if they want to
participate or not. CEO Pickering would ask that the Board of Directors
would direct staff to keep moving forward in this positive direction.
MOTION:
That the Board direct staff to move forward in relationship with CARF to
establish Fantasy Sports Wagering. Vice Chair Hime moved the motion and
it was seconded by Director Chong. Discussion: Director Mallel stated that
this item is critical for our long term planning as Cal Expo has the facilities
to activate once gambling is legalized in California. Is CARF the only avenue
to move forward with? CEO Pickering answered that there are roughly 20 or
more companied involved in Fantasy Sports with Fan Duels and Draft King
being the 2 largest in California. As Cal Expo is already of member of CARF
they will roll out Calypso Challenge Sports Wagering program here and at
other fairs. This will allow Cal Expo to explore other partnerships with other
Fantasy Sports companies. Chair Durfee asked for a roll call vote; Chair
Durfee, yes; Vice Chair Hime, yes; Director Choi, yes; Director Chong, yes;

MMm-8



Director DiMare, yes; Director Mallel, yes; Director May, yes. Motion
carried, unanimously.

b. Update and possible action on Emergency Water Line Repair
CEO Pickering reviewed the staff report with the Board. He noted that in
August, 2021, staff reported a leak in a major water supply line that could
threatened the operation of the COVID-19 testing and vaccination program
being coordinated by Sacramento County Health Department at the Pavilion
Building and the Race Track Grandstands. Pickering emailed Chair Durfee
and Vice Chair Hime to make them aware of this emergency and they
concurred with moving forward under CEO Pickering’s emergency authority.
Cal Expo authorized the California Construction Authority (CCA) to move
forward with the aforementioned repairs. September 8, 2021, CCA
completed the water line repairs and the repair cost was $6, 977.10. Since
the August Board Meeting was cancelled this was the first opportunity staff
had to bring you this matter.
MOTION:
That the Board approve actions taken by staff to make repairs to the water
line. The motion was moved by Vice Chair Hime and seconded by Director
DiMare. Discussion — None Chair Durfee asked for a roll call vote; Chair
Durfee, yes; Vice Chair Hime, yes; Director Choi, yes; Director Chong, yes;
Director DiMare, yes, Director Mallel, yes; Director May, yes. Motion
carried, unanimously.

10.0LD BUSINESS

a. Update and possible action regarding Spectra’s request for Rent
Abatement due to losses during the COVID pandemic as the Operator of
Heart Health Park.
CEO Pickering gave the Board a brief summary and background
information of Spectra’s request for rent abatement due to the pandemic
for Heart Health Park. (HHP) Pickering also stated that the Department of
Justice and the Department of General Services view any outright
forgiveness of rent to be a gift of public funds.
Mr. Nearly stated that prior to the September meeting DGS and the DOJ
had taken the position that any forgiveness of debt would be considered a
gift of public funds. However, if Spectra had any assets or anything of
value that they would be willing to give to Cal Expo at the end of their
agreement in exchange for the waiver of rent that could be a possible
work around. This is the reason that Spectra asked for this item be
continued to the October Board Meeting as they needed time to review
the original contract. The original contact between Cal Expo and Spectra
limits the Capital Investment that can be depreciated on the books to
$3,000,000 and in 2018 an additional $500,000 was added when the field

MM-9



was re-surfaced in order to get Sac Republic to renew their lease with
Spectra. There was a limited of $3.5 million to spend on the sports field

and Spectra actually spent $4.6 million. The $1,147,000 is an investment
that Spectra made in excess of what the agreement said should be spent

or what can be depreciated against the books of the Sports fund. What
Spectra is proposing is that at the end of the agreement Spectra would
leave those assets there, transferring ownership from Spectra to Cal Expo.
That would be even at a depreciated number substantially more than the
$187,000.00 that is being asked for in the form of rent relief.

CEO Pickering mentioned that in the prior staff report there were 2 other
items that needed Board direction. Cal Expo is holding some parking

money that had be generated at the sports field and Spectra had been
withholding payment for certain services that Cal Expo provides.

MOTION:

Vice Chair Hime moved that the parking fund (Cal Expo) and service fund
(Spectra) get cleaned up and taken care of as expeditiously as possible.
Director Choi seconded the motion. Discussion: Director Chong asked what
the amount were. Mr. Neary stated that as of September, Spectra’s books
show Spectra owing Cal Expo $158,604.00 for services and Cal Expo owing
Spectra $156,936.00 in parking revenue with a difference of $1,668.00
being owed to Cal Expo. Chair Durfee asked for a roll call vote; Chair
Durfee, yes; Vice Chair Hime, yes; Director Choi, yes; Director Chong, yes;
Director DiMare, yes; Director Mallel, yes; Director May, yes. Motion
carried, unanimously.

CEO Pickering stated that there was report out of Closed Session held at
the beginning of the Board’s retreat and Chair Durfee reported out that

the Board provided direction to Cal Expo’s negotiating staff regarding

funds owed to Cal Expo by Spectra.

MOTION:

Director Choi made a motion to direct staff to issue a letter of default to
Spectra for breach of the agreement for nonpayment of rent and to allow
Spectra the opportunity to cure. Director Chong seconded the motion.
Discussion — None Chair Durfee asked for a roll call vote; Chair Durfee, yes;
Vice Chair Hime, yes; Director Choi, yes; Director Chong, yes; Director
DiMare, yes; Director Mallel, yes; Director May, yes. Motion carried,
unanimously.

11.MATTERS OF INFORMATION:
a. Notification of Nomination Process for the election of the 2022 Board
Officers
CEO Pickering reviewed the nomination process for the election of the
2022 Board Officers. He mention that last year the Board modified the by-
laws to allow the Chair to serve until they obtain a State Fair during their
time of service. Vice Chair Hime made a motion to nominate Jess Durfee

MM-10



to Chair of the State Fair Board for 2022-2023. Director Chong made a
motion to nominate Rex Hime to Vice Chair of the State Fair Board for
2022-2023. Nomination will remain open until the December 10* board
meeting.

b. CEO Comments
CEO Pickering congratulate the entire Board for being current on Ethic and
Sexual Harassment classes. Also want to thank the Board for providing
input, feedback and strategic direction to staff for the 2022 State Fair
being held July 15-31, 2022.
Chair Durfee announced that as chair he is appointing Vice Chair Hime
and Director DiMare as a sub-committee to communicate with Friends of
the Fair and the Agricultural Advisory Council regarding AG awards
program and the Gala.

c. Director Comments/Agenda Items for Future Meetings
Director Chong — Had a very good retreat. Discussed a lot of topics for
2022 and the future. Happy to see everyone and looking forward to a
prosperous and fun State Fair in 2022.
Director Choi — Glad to see everyone. This is her first in-person meeting.
Looking forward to all of the things discussed at the retreat and the 2022
State Fair.
Director DiMare — Wants to acknowledge staff and how hard they have
work for the past 2 years through some really trying times. As was
discussed at the retreat; as we move forward for the 2022 State Fair this
is a great opportunity to do somethings differently, make changes and
hope that everyone recognizes that this is our opportunity.
Director May — Congratulations to Chief Walton. Excellent choice.
Vice Chair Hime — Want to echo Director DiMare about staff, echo Director
May about Chief Walton, and welcome Ms. Tillman.
Chair Durfee — Thank you to the Directors that were able to participate in
the marathon of our retreat. They build a stronger team. Thanks to staff
for preparing for the 2 day retreat. Looking forward to staffing up again.
Optimistic that we will have a fabulous 2022 State Fair and beyond.

d. Next Board Meeting — Friday, December 10, 2021
12. ADJOURNMENT
MOTION:
Chair Durfee called for a motion to adjourn. Motion was moved by Director
Chong and seconded by Director Choi. All in favor, motion passes

unanimously.

The Board of Directors meeting was adjourned at 1:20 p.m.

MM-11






N (swnjoa sajes Jaybiy)| 95°9/6'10S'v $ ﬁ | L8GEL'BYEY S | SS0IO AeMpIN|
i B - ~ |sos6lgszz §| | | 6ELL505Z ‘m;, $SO0J9) SNAAON
| 68'508'ZhY  § | | 05900267 $S0J9) [eOUBWWOD
- - - ] (ewnjon sejes Jaybiy)| 12 967'6£8'8 S | 95'9.5°0v5°8 § |enoads sepnjou) SSOI9 pooy |
o - - | 962ELL _ ¥88'GZ1 pasied sieQ
- - (seapuspe pied o} 9522109P %01) €22 0LE m 6GE'LLY 8ouepushy pled|
- - - eS| 192109 aouepuaNy [ejoL
. - o SAIVWIIS3zzoc ~ SUvnIdveloe
- (28°L16) ¢ €792 /8r'808'GL _§ 86'7Z $ | 65e'08L'9L ¢ IVL0L[0Z
~ sespuaye pied o) eseasoap %0L[(58y'8) $ 120 29£'9.L $ 120 ovg'ye | snoaue|jaosIN (6l
- 2202 104 8sELI08P %() pewnsse|(055'62) $| |z2Lo 056'592 $ 2,0 | 009'66Z spy auim (gL
- 220z 10} @5B2I08P %0l pownsse|(692°'69Z)  $ 91’9 6L6'L6ET  $| |9r9 | 889'269'C - sdysiosuods|/]
- R oL ¢ |900 000'22 $ S00  |o068'LZ ~ eoedguejei] (9|
= N I %] |zervo 000'vSL  $| |[ie0 |ees’es | HEdAM[GL
- ~ soapusje pled 0} asee108p %01 |(809't) $ Lo | oLy $ L0 ¥80'0F ~ senidAoN|pL
- e €5 $ LT 00004  $ 'L | Lv6'69Y sea4 Au3lel
. B B - (0s2'82) $ GL'0 265'9S $ 120 Zre'se ~ sweuboid eagadwod|zL
- ) S6¢ $ z21o | 000'EY $ 0L0 509'zy sweibold Buoey|| |
o B - o 981 $ hie 000°GL0°L  § Lz P18'7L0L [enIny-Led|oL
B “sespuajie pled o} aseaiosp %01 |(££5°02) $ 0S0 €6L 1781 $ 050 62€'602 lleJouo |6
seapusjje pied o} aseasdap %01 [(6LS) $ 100 899t $] |00 L81'S 8sipueyoIs|y Heuo) |8
mm_mm 19301 810w + sespusje pied 0} asea103p %0L| 0Gt' P g [ ¥s0 000002 ¢ g8c'0 0S5'/SL (810119 plo9) Buneas psouog |/
] $ 190 000'szz $| |[sso 000's22 (spung Jayi0) leallied (g
souepusye pied x deo Jad 0} 8sE8I0UI %G1 EN.S $| |8 z9z'zeL'L  $ 6Ly €66'1ZL°L [eAluBD |G
~ seopudje pred 0} eseainsp %0L[(Ge9'czL)  $ z0¢ rL0'8LL'L  $ 20'€ | 60L'EVT'L S)QIYX3 [BlRIBWIWOD [
~ ©ouepuspe pied x ded sod o) aseaioul %S5L| 821’8,  § ¥2'9 | 09°0LEZ $ ev's [AXAATA ~ abesanag ¥ pood|e
seapuaje pled 0} asea109p %0L|(0Fr'SLL)  § 9Ty v96'845°L  $| |92V vOr'vSL | Bunped|z
sespuaye pled 0} 8se2103p %01 |(LE9'VEY) $ 19'0L $|/90'gz6'c  $ 19°0L $[v0sr29ey ¢ SUOISS|WPY| |
S S v102-2102 £22'0LE J1VINILST 6SS'LLF | SIVNLOV I .
o SNOILANNSSY - nv pled 220z | NV pled 6102 - o
ERINEEEE((s) SdvD ¥3d | MIV4 31VIS SdvO ¥3d | MIvd 31ViS o
4 3 a | o) g N4 uwnjo)

» 1390N4d 2202 A3S0d0¥d
dNNIAZY ¥IVd 31VIS
dlvd 31V1S ® NOILISOdX3 VINYO4ITVI




~ CALIFORNIA EXPOSITION & STATE FAIR

* PROPOSED 2022 BUDGET *

—— B
- | S — e - T—
Column A B C D
R
o o YD [ YD | DIFFERENCE | ]
TN 2019 2022 - - ~ ASSUMPTIONS -
W ACTUALS | ESTIMATE [COLB-COLA |
Revenue N ) - |
1|State Fair $ 16,780,359 | § 15,868,487 | §  (911,872)|see PROPOSED STATE FAIR BUDGET for details
2|Expo Events 4,294,279 | 3,220,709 | $ (1 ,073,570)|post COVID - 25% decrease; fewer events, lower al:endance
| 3|Multi-Use Sports Faqh_t;_( 137,759 | 137,759 | § - |minimum guarantee (including Lot 25 rent) -
4]Rock and Brews 150,000 150,000 | $ - |minimum guarantee e _
| 5|Watch & Wager | 98969 100,000 | § 101 - e
6|Simulcast 882,590 88300018 410 o -
 7|RV Park _ | 1,155,784 1,155,000 [$  (784)] - - —
8 _F\'_agﬂg_Waters ) B - 333,152 | 283, 179 [$§  (49,973)|post COVID - 15% decrease o i
9|Electronic Sign 373,462 358,308 | §  (15,154)|minimum guarantee - -
10]Miscellaneous | 29327  20,000(% (9.327)] )
11] Rembursements B 2,473,621 | 1,900,250 | §  (573,371)|post COVID - tied to Expo Events (Row 2)
12| Grants | 642,819 85,000 % (557,819)|currently have (1) grant in process for 2022 77_7
13]interest Revenue 174,935 200,000 | $ 25,065 - -
14|TOTAL REVENUE $ 27,527,056 | $ 24,361,693 | $ (3,165,363)
15| Personal Services _ ] o ) ]
16]Salaries & Wages 8 687, 917 8452128 |$ (235789 S
17|Benefits 3,962,820 3,844,742 (118,078) - I |
18] Total Personal Services $ 12,650,737 | $ 12,206,870 [ $  (353,867) T T o
19] Operating Expenses | . | - o -
20| General Expense 2,010,035 2,211,039 | $ 201,004 [10% i |ncrease ;
21]Advertising i 1 066,333 | 1,000,000 | §  (66,333)|Cal Expo establishes spend with Advertising Company
22|Printng - 123,545 | 135,900 | § 12,355 [10% increase . -
23| Communications | 147,888 | 125,000 [ $  (22,888) - . ]
| 24| Postage - 32,611 | 30,000 | $ (2,611)]
25|Insurance 968,894 | 1,051,581 | § 82,687 |5% increase to Property, 10% increase to General Liability
26| Travel | 2720 30,0008 2789 - o ]
27| Training ] 2999|  10000|$ 7,001 | - o
28|Facility Operations 748115 820,727 | $ 74,612 |10% increase B
29|Utilities 1_581 842 | 1,740,026 '$ 158,184 |10% increase . ]
30|Cons & Prof Svcs External | 4,951,348 | 5,198,915 | $ 247,567 |post COVID - 5% increase in labor o
31]Cons & Prof Svcs Internal | 107573 125000 | § 17,427 - i ]
32|Data Processing B 99,521 | 100,000 | § 479 R = ]
33|Entertainment 785640 | 1,211,600 | $ 425,960 |doubled Big Name budget, increased to $852K B
34Judging 7 70,029 90,000 )% 19971 . - o
35)Premiums | 223,587 210,000 | § (13887 i -
36jProRata - 748,940 | 613,476 | $  (135,464) o - S |
37|Other 94,126 100,000 | § 5874 S - ]
38| Total Operating Expenses $ 13,788,237 | $ 14,803,263 | $§ 1,015,026 | - B
39|TOTAL EXPENSES $ 26,438,974 | $ 27,100,133 [ § 661,159 B - - ]
40] OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) | $ 1,088,082 | $ (2,738,441)] $ (3,826,523) - ]
41|Prior Year Income | (17.280)f  -1§ 17,280 ) -
42)Prior Year Expense ~ 274102 | -1$  (27,102) - - ]
43|Capital Improvements 8,288 100,000 [$§ 91,712 | - .
44]Equipment 303,026 | 100,000 | §  (203,026)
45] CHANGES IN RESERVES | $ 732,386 | $ (2,038,441)| $ (3,670,827) - L -

F-2



California Exposition & State Fair
Request for Relief of Accountability

The following items are being presented for the Board’s approval to be written off. With
the Board'’s approval, a relief of accountability will be prepared and the item will be
written off if the item is under $500. If the item is over $500, the relief of accountability
will be sent to the State Controller’'s Office for approval. All of these debtors have
received at least three letters from Cal Expo requesting payment and have been turned
over to a collection agency. After they are written off, they will remain at the collection
agency for possible collection. They will also be added to a list of all items that have
been written off and distributed to staff in case they come back to Cal Expo at a later
time.

* Due to recent financial support by the State, Staff respectfully recommends that
Item #1 not be turned over to collections, but rather simply written off.

Name Amount Date Description
1) California Military Department $ 228800 2020 National Guard Staging - Damage
2) TFC - Joe Mestmaker Enterprises $ 280000 2020 Storage Rent
3) Audible, LLC $ 100.00 2020 Livestock Panel Rental
$ 5,188.00

FOOTNOTES:
Item #1: DGS reimbursed Cal Expo $115,681 for this activation as an
emergency support facility. DGS and CMD have not reimbursed Cal Expo for
$2,288 in damaged asphalt.

ltem #2: TFC is a State Fair food vendor, who has been storing BBQ equipment

at Cal Expo. TFC will not be allowed to participate in the State Fair until this
$2,800 is properly addressed.

F-3






State of California California Exposition & State Fair
1600 Exposition Boulevard
Sacramento, CA 95815

MEMORANDUM

Date: December 7, 2021

To: Board of Directors, California Exposition & State Fair

From: Rick K. Pickering, Chief Executive Officer

Subject: Discussion of Master Food & Beverage Concessionaire, Aqreement

No. 12-0281, Set to Expire December 31, 2022

| GENERAL BACKGROUND

Spectra (previously known as Ovations Fanfare, LP, and as Comcast Spectacor) has
served as the Master Food & Beverage Concessionaire (F&B) at the California
Exposition and State Fair (Cal Expo) for more than 28 years. The current Master Food
& Beverage Concessionaire Agreement No. 12-0281 is set to expire December 31,
2022, unless it is mutually extended.

In 2011, Cal Expo issued a Letter of Intent that sought interest from qualified companies
to provide F&B services. Four companies responded, and two were deemed to be
qualified. Cal Expo then issued a formal Request for Proposals in February of 2012.
Spectra was the only company that submitted a proposal under the RFP. Following
months of negotiations, the current F&B Agreement was entered into in November of
2012. The Agreement provides Spectra with exclusive rights to sell food and beverage
on the Cal Expo grounds with certain limitations.

Section 12 of the Agreement provides that the Term of the Agreement shall be January
1, 2013, through December 31, 2022. It further states that Cal Expo at its sole
discretion, shall have the option to extend the Agreement for two (2) additional five (5)-
year terms, which can be exercised collectively or independently. In order to exercise
the extension option, the parties are to agree no later than December 31, 2021, on the
annual payments. If the parties do not so agree, the Agreement will expire on
December 31, 2022.

It should be noted that providing one-year advance notice to Spectra, will allow for

continuity of F&B services to all events at Cal Expo during 2022 and to Spectra
operated F&B stands during the 2022 Annual State Fair.

NB-1



| COMMISSIONS PAID BASED on F&B SALES

The Agreement and its subsequent Amendments, specifies that Spectra shall pay
commissions to Cal Expo tied to various percentages on F&B and alcohol sales that
occur during: Cal Expo events; the Annual State Fair; Catering events; etc. Cal Expo
receives a smaller commission when Spectra uses independent food vendors to provide
F&B services at Cal Expo. F&B sales commissions at the Grandstands are tied to
annual Net Profits from F&B sales at the Grandstands. For 8 of the past 9 years,
Spectra has not generated a Net Profit from F&B sales at the Grandstands.

Since commissions are based upon F&B sales activities, higher commission revenues
are generated in the years with more events and higher attendance. In addition to
commissions, Spectra pays a blanket $2,000/month to cover utilities costs at the
Grandstand.

USE OF FACILITIES

The Agreement allows Spectra the use of many portions of Cal Expo, including but not
limited to: kitchens; storage areas; permanent food booths throughout the property;
portable food booths; concessions stands; office areas; loading docks; warehouse
areas; asphalt parking areas; staging areas; etc.

Section 15 of the Agreement requires that upon termination Spectra shall provide Cal
Expo with a quit claim deed to all rights arising out of the Agreement.

Section 27 of the Agreement provides that title to all equipment and fixtures which are
part of the facility investment required by the Agreement will accrue to Cal Expo at the
end of the Agreement.

RECOMMENDATIONS ]

Cal Expo appreciates and respects the almost 28-year relationship with Spectra at Cal
Expo, but it appears prudent as a State Agency to consider options. Should Cal Expo
notify Spectra it will not be extending the current Agreement beyond December 31,
2022, it explore potential new approaches or service providers for handling F&B.

Recommendations

1. To direct staff to notify Spectra that Cal Expo is not extending Agreement No. 12-
0281 beyond its expiration date of December 31, 2022.

2. To direct staff to return to the Board in early 2022 with options that will include

but not be limited to, soliciting competitively bidding for all or for portions of the
food & beverage services at Cal Expo.

NB-2



State of California California Exposition & State Fair
1600 Exposition Boulevard
Sacramento, CA 95815

MEMORANDUM

Date: December 7, 2021

To: Board of Directors, California Exposition & State Fair
From: Rick K. Pickering, Chief Executive Officer

Subject: Discussion of Multi-use Sports Field Facility, Agreement No. 13-0347,
Set to Expire December 31, 2022

| GENERAL BACKGROUND

In March of 2014, following months of negotiations and the filing of appropriate
environmental review documents, Cal Expo entered into Agreement No. 13-0347
(Agreement) for Ovations-Fanfare, LLP to construct and operate a temporary Multi-use
Sports Facility on the grounds of Cal Expo. Subsequently, due to mergers and
acquisitions, the Ovations-Fanfare corporate entity changed to Comcast Spectacor,
then to Spectra, and most recently to the Oak View Group. The remainder of this Staff
Report will refer to Spectra as the successor operating name of the prior Ovations-
Fanfare, LLP.

Section 2 of the Agreement provides that it will terminate on December 31, 2022. The
Agreement may be extended for an additional term equal in length to the option period
in the separate and otherwise unrelated master food and beverage agreement between
Spectra and Cal Expo, but only if Cal Expo and Spectra mutually agree to extend this
Agreement.

The Agreement requires that Spectra’s Capital Improvements at the Facility be fully
amortized by December 31, 2022. The Agreement also requires Spectra to transfer
ownership of said improvements to Cal Expo at the end of the Term.

It should be noted that providing one-year advance notice to Spectra will allow for
continuity of Sacramento Republic matches at the Field Facility for its 2022 season. It is
anticipated that Sac Republic will be able to continue with Cal Expo as its home field
beyond 2022 and for several years into the future.

NB-3



ANNUAL RENT, MINIMUM GUARANTEE, PERENTAGE OF OPERATING PROFITS —l

The Agreement and its subsequent Amendments, specifies that Spectra shall pay Cal
Expo an Annual Minimum Guarantee of $100,000 ($8,333/month.) Since the operations
of the facility requires more space, Spectra rents Lot 25 from Cal Expo on an annual
basis at $37,752 ($3,146/month.)

In concert with the Minimum Guarantee of annual rent, the initial Agreement outlined
three “Tiered-thresholds” in which the amount paid to Cal Expo would increase if the
percentage of Net Earnings exceeded the minimum guarantee. The thresholds for
sharing in Net Earnings are:
Tier 1: At start up, Cal Expo would receive 20% and Spectra 80%;
Tier 2: When annual net earnings plus depreciation hits $3 million, Cal Expo
would receive 40% and Spectra 60%; and
Tier 3: When annual net earnings plus depreciation hits $3.75 million, Cal Expo
receives 50% and Spectra 50%.

Although the 50%-50% threshold was reached several years ago, for the most part
Spectra has not been able to generate a Net Earnings that would provide Cal Expo with
any funds above the Annual Minimum Guarantee of $100,000.

USE OF FACILITIES

In May of 2014, the Sacramento Republic, USL Pro soccer team began play at the muti-
use sports facility. Due to the success of Sac Republic inaugural 2014 season, Cal
Expo agreed to an Amendment that allowed additional land area to the North end of the
Facility, and some 4,000 seats were added. The 2016 Soccer season saw consistently
sold-out matches at the new seating capacity. Of note is that Sac Republic's agreement
is with Spectra, and Cal Expo has not been a party to their agreement.

In addition to the Republic Matches, International Soccer matches, Pro and International
Rugby games, and College Lacrosse have taken place at the Field. Cal Expo also
agreed to allow Global Winter Wonder Land to be operated as part of the Sports Field
Agreement and it drew upwards of 200,000 attendees annually for three years. Spectra
entered into a third-party financial agreement for the Nederlander Organization to place
concerts and music festivals at the Field. One to two such concerts took place during
the dates of the Annual California State Fair. Of note is that Nederlander's agreement
is solely with Spectra, and Cal Expo is not a party to this agreement.

The COVID global pandemic had a negative impact on sports, events, and concert

industries around the world. When Health Department Officials allowed the Republic to
resume play, they initially were not allowed to have fans at the Matches. Eventually

NB-4



these restrictions were lifted, and fans returned to watch Matches, but at lower
numbers.

Tied to the negative impact of the pandemic, in June of 2021 Spectra requested that Cal
Expo forgive some $183,679 in rent at the Field and at Lot 25. This request was denied
due to California regulations that prevent “gifts of public funds.” Last month, Cal Expo
placed Spectra in default at the Field due to rent being owed. Spectra and Cal Expo
have continued to negotiate in good faith to resolve this default.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Cal Expo recognizes and appreciates the efforts and investments that Spectra has
made to construct and operate the Muti-use Sports Field facility at Cal Expo. When the
Term of the Agreement expires on December 31, 2022, all improvements will be owned
by Cal Expo. Should Cal Expo notify Spectra it will not be extending the current
Agreement beyond December 31, 2022, Cal Expo can prudently explore how potential
bidders might propose to operate the Field Facility into the future.

Recommendations

1. To direct staff to notify Spectra that Cal Expo is not extending Agreement No. 13-
0347 beyond its expiration date of December 31, 2022.

2. To direct staff to return to the Board in early 2022 with options that will include
but not be limited to, soliciting competitively bidding for all or for portions of the
Multi-use Sports Field Facility.

** 1t should again be noted that providing a one-year advance notice to Spectra will
allow for continuity of Sacramento Republic matches at the Field Facility for the 2022
soccer season. It is anticipated that Sac Republic will be able to continue with Cal Expo
as its home field beyond 2022 and for several years into the future.

NB-5




= Califorrua
CAL'EXPO | STATE-FAIR

2022 CALENDAR

(Includes Board Meetings, Committee Meetings, Key Events)

Meeting Date Subject and/or Financial Related Actions
January 28 Board Meeting
February 25 Board Meeting

Annual Gala Awardee Nominations

March 25 Board Meeting

*4th quarter/ Year End Financial Statement Approval
April 29 Board Meeting
May 20 or June 3 Board Meeting

1st quarter Financial Statement Approval

Arrual Mlgit RE“'IE'“ apd aBEFB”Bi *

gt ot :
L

JULY 15-31, 2022 168™ CALIFORNIA STATE FAIR

September 23 or 30 Board Meeting
2nd quarter Financial Statement Approval
State Fair Recap & Revenue Report
*Annual Audit Review and Approval

October 27 & 28 Annual Retreat
3rd quarter Financial Statement Approval
Budget Preview

December 9 Annual Board Meeting

Budget Review & Approval
Officer Elections

Note: All meeting dates subject to change as needed, and as properly noticed as outlined in the
Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act. Please see posted Agenda for full listing of Board meeting items.

APPROVED:



WO SCBEPUS|ED MMM

92
6L
cl
S
S

Aepinjeg

8¢
GZ vZ €2 22 |2
gL 4L 9L SIL ¥l
L oL 6 8 ¢
vy € 2 L
4 L M 1 W

2z0Z Advndg34

Aeplig

Lz
0e
€l
9

S

Aepsinyy

¢ AY4VNNY

Aepsaupap

Aepsan|

dVANTIVO ONILIIW aYv0d L4vHd

S 14 £ & b L€ (0]
DNILIIW ayvod
62 8¢ i 9c T4 ve €e
Aeq Buny T
e Le 0c 6l 8l Ll a9l
Gl ¥l el ¢l L oL 6
8 7 9 g 1% € G
AeQ s Jeap map
L L€ (015 62 8¢ Jhe 9¢

le 0E 62 8¢ L2
S¢ ve €€ 2 e 02
8L 4L 9L SI ¥L €L
L 0L 6 8 £ 9
vy € ¢ L
S 4 1 M 1 W

oz 438W3o03a

9z
6l
Zl




WD SE|EPUS|RD MMM

ONILIIW advod AeQ ,syuspisald

9t T4 ve £€C iz T2 0¢

Aeq s,aunuajep
6T 8T LT 9T ST 748 £€T

T T (0] 8 6 8 L 9

Aepinjeg Aepsiny} Aepsaupapn Aepsan]

e 08 62 8¢ .2

6 8¢ L2 92 G2 vZ ¢z
92 SZ vz €2 2z 1z 02 ¢ Lz 02 6L 8L L1 91
6L 8L ZL 9L GL PL €l SL v EL ZL L 0L 6
gk L 0L 6 8 L 9 g L 9 § v £ T

3

S

S ¥ £ g L
s 4 1 M L W S 4 1L M L W S

€202 HOYVIN 220Z AYVNNVT

dVANTTVO ONILIIN adv08 L4vdd



WO SBEPUS|ED MMM

Aeq zaaey) Jesa)

SNILIIN quvod

9¢ SE ve 74 44 1Z 0¢
6T 8T LT 91 ST VT £l
ZT TT ot 6 8 L 9

Aepinjes

Aepsinyj Aepsaupapn Aepsan)

0 62 82 L& 92 S +wZ

8z /2
€ zz 1z 0T 6L 8L Ll 9 Sz vz g2 zZ 12 02
9L SL vl €L ZL L 0L 6L 8L 4L 9L SGL L €l
6 8 L 9 S ¥ ¢ gk LbooL 6 8 £ 9
z 1 S v £ z |
§ 4 1L M L W S S 4 1L M L W s
€20z iddv 220Z A¥vnyg3d

JVANTTVO ONILIIW adv0d 14vdd



Wod'sgellepua|ed’ mmm

Aepinies

L€
8¢ Lz 92 G2 vZ
ke 02 6L 8L ZI
vl EL ZL L1 0l

L 9 S v g
s 4 L m 1
2202 AVIN

Aepsinyj

Aepsaupam

Aepsan)

0]3 6¢ 8¢ Lz 9¢ S¢ 4
Aepuns Js3se]
€Z 44 1¢ 0T 6T 8T L1
Aepu4 poog
91 ST 4" €T (4! T 01
6 8 L 9 S 1% €
c (0}3 6¢ 8¢ L0

0t 6¢ le 08 6¢ 82 (L2

£¢ &¢ ve €2 22 lg 02

9L Gi L 9L S vl €L

6 8 oL 6 8 L 9

Z 1 U S A b

W s $§ 4 1 M L W s
2202 HOYVYIN

dYANITVO ONILIIW adv0o9g L4vHd



WO SREPUS|ED MMM

Aeq 1nuoq |euoinen Aeq jeuowa iy

8T L 9z T4 ve £€C 44

¢ONILIIW ayvod

TZ 0z 6T 8T LT 91 ST

Aeq s daylon
v €T (g B 1T 0T 6 8

Aepinies Aepsanyy Aepsaupapn Aepsan)

0 62 82 L& 92

0 6¢ 82 L2 9T ST ‘e
S¢ v¢ € 2« 2 0Z 6l € ¢ L& 02 6L 8L Ll
8L L 9L SL vl €L 2L 9L SL v €L 2L L1 0L
bl 0L 6 8 £ 9 § g8 L 9 S ¥ ¢

6
e g AN
$ 4 1 M L W s S 4 L M 1L W s
Zzoz annr 220z ddv

JVANTTVO ONILITW a¥vod 14vHda



W02 SORJEPUS|BD MMM

Aepunjeg

0g 62 82 ‘Lz 92
€2 2 1z 02 6L
SL vl oeL ozl
6 8 .2 9 g
|
4 1 m 1
Zeoz Anr

Aepsinyj

Aepsaupam

Aepsanj

¢C0¢ IANNr

dYANITVO ONILIIN A¥v09a 14vHAa

iz
(74
€l
9
E|

9 SZ ve
6L 8L Ll
4 ]
S ¥ g
1 M 1

20 AVIN

C T o€ 6¢ 8¢ LT 9¢
Aeq s,Jayie4

S¢ vz £C 44 L (014 6T
8T LT 9T ST vT €l 4"
TT ot 6 8 L 9 5

¢ONILIIW ayvod

AeQ 1nuoq |euonep Aeq |elioway
14 6¢




WO’ SQBEPUS|ED MMM

d1vd4 3LVIS VD

9 S 4 & 4 L €

d1vV4 31V1S VO dIvd 3LVIS V2 dlvd 3LVIS VO dIvd 3LVIS VD dlvd 3LV1S vO dIvd 3LVIS V2 dIvd 3LVIS VD
0€ 6¢ 8¢ lc 9¢ Ge ve

divd 3LVIS ¥ dIvV4 3LVIS V2 V4 3LVIS VO YIVd LVIS VO d1vd4 31VIS vD dIv4 3LVIS VD divd 3LV1S VO
£c (44 L 0¢ 6l 8l Ll

dIvV4 31V1IS VD YIVd4 31VIS VD
91 Sl 14" €l cl Ll ol

Aeq asuspuadapu

6 8 L 9 g 14 €

Aepinjeg

0e
€¢
9l

62
44
Sl

9e
6l

gk 1L 0L 6 8
¢ v 8 -
4 1 M L W

Zzoz Lsnonv

Aepsiny|

Aepsaupap

¢cOc A'INr

Aepsan)

dVANIIVO ONILIIW A¥v09g L4ved

Se
8L
b

0e
€2 6l
9l Zl
6 8 L 9 §

Z L

1 m 1

&zozZ INnr

9




WOD'SQBEPLSIEI MMM

ve
Ll
01

Aepunies

0g 62 8C 1z 92 62
€€ 2 1 0Z 6L 8l
9L Gl vl €L ZL LI

4 1L M L W S
2202 ¥3diN3Ld3s

¢co

Aepsinyj

Aepsaupam Aepsanj

¢ 1SNOn

HVANTTVO ONILITW aHv0d 14vdd

€ Z 1 T€ (0]3 6¢ 8¢
LE 9¢ 5¢ ve €C ' TZ
0¢ 6T 8T LT 9T ST T
£L [4" 1T 0T 6 8 L

9 S 1% £ 4 1 |53

L m 1
¢zoz Anr

3%
G¢ ve
8L Ll
L 0oL
v €

W s



WOD'SOBEPUS|ED MMM

¢DNILIIN aUvosg
T (0]3 6¢ 8¢ rird 9z Y4
¢DNILIIN av0og
|74 £€C T e (0)4 6T 8T
LT 91 ST T €T el T
Aeq Jogen
0T 6 8 Vi 9 g 14
€ Z L TE (0] 6¢ 8¢

Aepinies Aepiig Aepsinyy Aepsaupam

Aepsany

LE
62 82 Ltz 92 G2 e

0g

€ Ll 0E 6¢ 82
¢ 1z 02 6L 8L /LI 9l e 92 S vZ €2 Z¢z 12
SL v €L ZL LL 0L 6 0¢ 6L 8L ZL 9L S vl
8 £ 8 § & £ € € ¢ L 0L 6 8 £
L
S S

9 § ¥ € 2 L
4 1L M 1 W § 4 1L M 1 W S

2202 ¥390120 220z 1snonv

dVANTTVO ONIL3IIW AY¥v0g 14vdd



W09 SqRLIEPUS|ED’ MMM

uaamo||eH
S 14 2 (7 l LE 0¢
‘OLIN "a9 ? Lv3d13y 1v3di3y
ayvod TYNNNY ayvod TVNNNV
6¢ 8¢ lc 9¢ 14 e €¢
44 L 0¢ 6l 8l Ll 9l
AeQ snquinjo)
1 vl el cl Ll Ol 6
8 A 9 S 14 £ [4

Aepinjeg Aepsinyj Aepsaupapp Aepsan)

0€ 62 8¢ L2 0e 62 82 LZ 92 G2
92 5% V¢ £ 2 \Z 02 veé €2 ¢ g 0Z 6L 8l
6L 8L LI 9L GL ¥L €L ZL 9L S kL €L 2L LL
¢k L 0L B g ra 9 0L 6 8 L 9 S 14
S vy € A L > c b
s d 1L m 1 W s S 4 1 M L W S

ZZ0Z ¥39WINON 220Z ¥39W3Ld3S

dVANTTVO ONILITN adv0g L4vHd



LWOD' SR |IEPUS|ED MMM

3
ve
L
0t
€
]

Aepinjesg

0 62 82 L2 92
€2 22 12 02 6l
9L GL vl €L 2
6 8 £ 9 §

z
4 L M 1L W
Z¢0zZ ¥3aw3o3a

' TTOT ¥39WIAON

Aepsiny)

Aepsaupapn

Aepsan)

dVANITVO ONILIIN AvdH0d 14vdd

E 0 i 113 6¢ 8¢ LT
JuinBsyueyy
1934e Aeqg Aeq SuinB8syuey
9¢ S¢ ve £€¢ 44 TC 0¢
6T 8T LE 9T ST v £l
AeQ sueialap
T I3 oT 6 8 L 9
uaamoj|eH
S 4 € 4 T (0}3

62 8¢ LZ 92 ST ¢V¥E
¢ e 02 6L 8L [l
SL vl €L 2L L1 0L
g8 L 9 § ¥ €

s 4 1 M 1 W
€202 ¥3490100

0g
jord
9l



LIOD SABEPUS|ED MMM

(pantasqQ)
Aeq sewisuyd SBWISHYD
€ (0]3 6 8¢ Lz 9z 74
174 4 44 | ¥4 0z 61 8T
A 91 ST 14 €1 zr TT
ONILIIN
ayvod TVNNNY
0T 6 8 L 9 S v

Aepsinyi

Aepsaupam

Aepsani

Aepinies
e O
82 lZ 9z Sz vE €2
lz 0z 6L 8L /L 9
vL €L ZL LL 0L 6
L 9 § ¥ g 2
S 4 L M L W
€202 AMVNNVT

dVANITVO ONILI3N dvOod 14vdd

d39W303d

9 Sz vz €2 & 1z 02

6L 8L ZL 9L SL ¥L €L

Zh L 0L B 8 L 9

S ¥ € ¢

s 4 L M L W s
€20Z Y39INIAON




